
MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 
Board of Directors   Office      Term Expiration 
Butch Gabrielski   President      May 2023 
Wayne Reorda   Secretary/Treasurer   May 2022 
Bill Gessner    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2023 
Mike Fenton    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2023 
Tom Sauer    Asst. Secretary/Treasurer  May 2022 

 
DATE: Wednesday, April 6, 2022 
TIME: 10:00 a.m. 
PLACE: Meridian Ranch Recreation Center 
  10301 Angeles Road 
  Peyton, CO  80831 
 

The Public may participate in person or by following this link Click here to join the meeting or by 
telephone by calling +1 872-242-8662 and using Phone Conference ID: 712646387# 
 
I.  ADMINISTRATIVE ITEMS: 

A. Call to Order 
B. Conflicts of Interest 
C. Approve Agenda 
D. Visitor Comments (Limited to 3 minutes per resident or household) 
E. Review and Approve March 2, 2022, Combined Regular Board Meeting Minutes (enclosure) 

 
II.  FINANCIAL ITEMS:  

A. Review and Accept Cash Position Summary and Unaudited Financial Statements (enclosure 
and/or distributed under separate cover) 

B. Review Tap Fee Report for Information Only (enclosure and/or distributed under separate 
cover) 

C. Review, Ratify and Approve Monthly Payment of Claims (enclosure and/or distributed under 
separate cover) 

D. Receive Finance Committee Report 
 

III.  OPERATIONS & ENGINEERING ITEMS: 

A. Information Items (No Action) 
1. MSMD Operations Reports – Water, Sewer, Parks and Grounds, Recreation (enclosure 

and/or handout) 
2. Manager’s Verbal Report 

B. Action Items 
1. Consider and Approve Agreement with Western Enterprises, Inc. for Falcon Freedom 

Days Fireworks Show 
2. Consider and Approve Revisions to Meridian Service Metro District General Utility 

Notes for Water and Sanitary Sewer construction within Sanctuary at Meridian Ranch 
3. Consider and Approve Lease Agreement with The Shops at Meridian Ranch LLC for 

District Office 
4. Consider and Approve Renewal of Annual Agreement for Bill.com Services. 

1 of 106

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_YzgxMzhmN2UtODY0My00NDE2LWFjNWQtYzNjMzBiZWU1MWRl%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22ddbf1e07-ec1e-4dc6-8ef3-1a31c2da785b%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22778ad138-ba67-4d4d-bdb1-39557c30639d%22%7d
baldrich
Typewriter
Page 3

baldrich
Typewriter
Supplement

baldrich
Typewriter
Pages 7-8

baldrich
Typewriter
MRMD Page 9, Interim Page 10, MSMD Supplement

baldrich
Typewriter
Page 11

baldrich
Typewriter
Pages 16-26

baldrich
Typewriter
Pages 27-40

baldrich
Typewriter
Pages 41-46

baldrich
Typewriter
Pages 47-106

baldrich
Typewriter
Supplement



 
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District (MRMD) 
Meridian Service Metropolitan District (MSMD) 
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan District 2018 Subdistrict (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
IV.  DEVELOPER ITEMS: 

A. Verbal Report from Construction Manager 
 
V.  DIRECTOR ITEMS: 
 
VI.  LEGAL ITEMS: 
 

A. Enter into Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402(4)(b) to confer with attorney for 
the district for the purpose of receiving legal advice regarding Letter of Intent for sale of 
wastewater treatment capacity. 

 
VII.  ADJOURNMENT:   

The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for Wednesday, May 4, 2022, at 10:00 
a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831. 

2 of 106



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

1 
 

MINUTES OF THE COMBINED REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MRMD) 
MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 2018 SUBDISTRICT (MRMD 2018 Subdistrict) 
 

Held: March 2, 2022, 10:00 a.m., at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 
Angeles Road, Peyton, Colorado 80831 

 
Attendance: The following Directors were in attendance:  
 
  Butch Gabrielski, President 
  Wayne Reorda, Secretary/Treasurer 
  Bill Gessner, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
  Mike Fenton, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
  Tom Sauer, Asst. Secretary/Treasurer 
 
 Also present were: 
  Jim Nikkel; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Jennette Coe; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Beth Aldrich; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Braden McCrory; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Ryan Kozlowski; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Aleks Myszkowski; Meridian Service Metro District  
  Eileen Krauth; Meridian Service Metro District 
  Carrie Billingsly; Meridian Service Metro District (via videoconference) 
  Debra Williams; Meridian Service Metro District (via videoconference) 
  Karrie Dean; Meridian Service Metro District (via videoconference) 
  Ron Fano; Spencer Fane 
  Raul Guzman; Tech Builders (via videoconference) 
  Tom Kerby; Tech Builders (via videoconference) 
  Robert Guevara; Resident (via videoconference) 
  Kiley Draper; Resident (via videoconference) 
 
Call to Order A quorum of the Board was present, and the Directors confirmed their 

qualification to serve.  The meeting was called to order at 10:01 a.m. 
 
Disclosure Matter Mr. Fano noted that written disclosures of the interests of all Directors have 

been filed with the Secretary of State. 
 
Approve Agenda The Board reviewed the Agenda. A motion was made to amend the agenda to 

add a Directors Item to discuss the upcoming Meridian Ranch Board of 
Directors election process. The motion was seconded and approved by 
unanimous vote of directors present. 

3 of 106



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

2 
 

 
Visitor Comments There were no comments. 
 
Approve Minutes The Board reviewed the February 2, 2022, Board Minutes and a motion was 

made to amend the minutes to show that Mr. Kozlowski and Mr. McCrory were 
present at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center for the February 2, 2022, 
board meeting and not via Videoconference as recorded.  The motion was 
approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

 
Financial Items Cash Position Summary and Financial Statements:  Ms. Coe reviewed the cash 

position summary and monthly financial reports for January 2022.  A motion 
was made and seconded to accept the cash position summary and financial 
statements as presented.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote of 
directors present. 

 
 Review 2022 Tap Fee Report:  Ms. Coe reviewed the February 2022 Tap Fee 

Report with the Board for information only. 
 

Approval of Payment of Claims: Ms. Coe reviewed the updated claims 
presented for approval at this meeting represented by check numbers: 

MRMD: 02331-02336 totaling $7,018.25  
Interim: Bill.com payments for ratification totaling $145,278.30 
MSMD: Bill.com Payments totaling $181,262.48 

A motion was made and seconded to approve the MSMD payment of claims. 
The motion approved by unanimous vote of directors present.  
A motion was made and seconded to approve the MRMD payment of claims. 
The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 
 
Receive Finance Committee Report: Ms. Coe noted the Finance Committee met 
on February 18, 2022 and gave a summary of the Finance Committee Report 
on page 7 of the packet. The February Interim payments were reviewed and 
signed by Director Gabrielski and Director Sauer. 

 
Operations &  
Engineering Items  Information Items: 
 
 MSMD Operations Reports:  

• Mr. McCrory presented the water, sewer, parks and grounds, and 
drainage operation reports which included information from pages 10-
11 of the Board Packet. 

• Mr. Kozlowski presented the Recreation Center Report to the Board 
which included information from page 12 of the Board Packet.   

 

4 of 106



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

3 
 

Managers Verbal Report:  Mr. Nikkel provided status reports on the following 
matters:  

• We are currently in the process of hiring a Lead Water/Wastewater 
Operator. He is going through the hiring process and should be on staff 
by March 14 if all goes well. 

• David Clegg will be leaving us. March 11, 2022 is his last day. 

• Filter Plant Expansion is continuing, and we are getting referral 
comments on soil conservation and waiting on others to come in. 

• We received bids on the pipeline portion of the Filter Plant Expansion. 
JDS recommended the District award the contract to Beers 
Construction.  

 
Action Items:  

1. Consider and Approve Professional Service Agreement for Personal Training Services-Kiley 
Draper: A motion was made and seconded to approve a professional services agreement for 
personal training to Kiley Draper. The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors 
present. 

 
2. Approve Copier Lease & Maintenance Agreement with Axis Business Technologies: A motion 

was made and seconded to approve a copier lease & maintenance agreement with Axis 
Business Technologies. The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

 
3. Consider and Approve Contract of Construction of Water Transmission Line from the Filter 

Plant to the Storage Tanks: A motion was made and seconded to approve a contract for 
construction of water transmission line and to authorize Mr. Nikkel to sign the contract with 
Beers Construction. The motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

 
4. Approve MRMD 2018 Subdistrict 2021 Audit Exemption: A motion was made and seconded to 

approve the MRMD 2018 Subdistrict Application for Exemption from Audit for 2021. The 
motion was approved by unanimous vote of directors present. 

 
Developer Items Mr. Guzman provided a verbal report to the Board on the status of Meridian 

Ranch development activities with no major updates from last month. 
 
Director Items Election Discussion. 
 
Legal Items There were none. 
 
Adjournment There being no further business to come before the Board, the President 

adjourned the meeting at 10:52 a.m. 
 
 The next regular meeting of the Boards is scheduled for April 6, 2022, at 10:00 

a.m. at the Meridian Ranch Recreation Center, 10301 Angeles Road, Peyton, 
Colorado 80831. 

5 of 106



 RECORD OF PROCEEDINGS 
_________________________________________________________________________________________ 
  

4 
 

 
 
 Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 _____________________________ 
 Secretary for the Meeting 

6 of 106



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

2022 Tap Report

Counts Date Tap Receipt No. Service Address Filing # Lot # Builder  Tap Amt Paid 

 Meter Amt 

Paid Check No. Monthly Totals

68 3/1/2022 3557 10439 Summer Ridge Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 36 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514985

69 3/1/2022 3558 10427 Summer Ridge Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 37 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514986

70 3/1/2022 3559 10421 Summer Ridge Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 38 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514987

71 3/8/2022 3560 10831 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 259 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #0517451

72 3/8/2022 3561 10823 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 260 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00517452

73 3/8/2022 3562 10815 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 261 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00517453

74 3/8/2022 3563 10807 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 262 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00517454

75 3/1/2022 3564 12660 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 56 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514979

76 3/1/2022 3565 12668 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 57 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514980

77 3/1/2022 3566 12676 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 58 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514981

78 3/1/2022 3567 12684 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 59 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514982

79 3/1/2022 3568 12659 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 106 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514983

80 3/1/2022 3569 12667 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 107 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Ck #00514984

81 3/14/2022 3574 9860 Meridian Hills Tr Stonebridge 4 127 Campbell Homes 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Epymnt:P22031102 - 6752758

82 3/14/2022 3575 9914 Hidden Ranch Ct Stonebridge 4 201 Campbell Homes 19,000.00$                   655.00$                EPymnt:P22031102 - 6755562

83 3/21/2022 3576 10806 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 235 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520399

84 3/21/2022 3577 10814 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 236 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520400

85 3/21/2022 3578 10822 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 237 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520401

86 3/21/2022 3579 10830 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 238 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520402

87 3/21/2022 3580 12628 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 52 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520410

88 3/21/2022 3581 12636 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 53 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520410

89 3/21/2022 3582 12644 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 54 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520410

90 3/21/2022 3583 12652 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 55 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520410

91 3/21/2022 3584 10458 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 3 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520403

92 3/21/2022 3585 10466 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 4 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520404

93 3/21/2022 3586 10474 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 5 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520405

94 3/21/2022 3587 10482 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 6 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520406

95 3/21/2022 3588 10490 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 7 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520407

96 3/21/2022 3589 10498 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 8 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520408

97 3/21/2022 3590 10506 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 9 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00520409

98 3/17/2022 3591 12731 Enclave Scenic Dr Stonebridge 4 119 Covington Homes 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Wire/220317146447

99 3/23/2022 3592 10975 Rolling Mesa Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 204 ZRH Construction 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Epymnt/025AGOIUDW6L

100 3/23/2022 3593 10974 Rolling Mesa Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 193 ZRH Construction 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Epymnt/025UQSRXIK6L

101 3/23/2022 3594 13424 New Ranch Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 2 459 Covington Homes 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Wire/220323080845

102 3/23/2022 3595 13410 New Ranch Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 2 460 Covington Homes 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Wire/220323080845

102 3/25/2022 3596 12838 Granite Ridge Dr Stonebridge 4 145 Campbell Homes 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Epymnt: P22032402 - 7968311

103 3/28/2022 3597 9891 HiddenRanch Ct Stonebridge 4 155 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522400

104 3/28/2022 3598 9879 Hidden Ranch Ct Stonebridge 4 156 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522401

105 3/28/2022 3599 9867 Hidden Ranch Ct Stonebridge 4 157 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522402

106 3/28/2022 3600 9855 Hidden Ranch Ct Stonebridge 4 158 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522403

107 3/28/2022 3601 9843 Hidden Ranch Ct Stonebridge 4 159 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522404

108 3/28/2022 3602 9831 Hidden Ranch Ct Stonebridge 4 160 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522405

109 3/28/2022 3603 10415 Summer Ridge Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 39 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522579

110 3/28/2022 3604 10499 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 82 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522580

111 3/28/2022 3605 10491 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 83 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522581

112 3/28/2022 3606 10483 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 84 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522582

113 3/28/2022 3607 10475 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 85 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522583

114 3/28/2022 3608 10863 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 255 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522584

115 3/28/2022 3609 10855 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 256 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522585

116 3/28/2022 3610 10847 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 257 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522586

117 3/28/2022 3611 10839 Rolling Peaks Dr Rolling Hills Ranch 1 258 Century Communities 19,000.00$                   655.00$                Check #00522587 51 March

7 of 106



Meridian Service Metropolitan District

2022 Tap and Meter Set Additional Fees Collected

(Initial) Tap 

Purchase Date

Tap 

Receipt 

No. Service Address Builder

Tap Fee Paid 

At Time of 

Purchase

Meter Set 

Fee Paid At 

Time of 

Purchase

Additional Tap Fees 

Due (Per Current Fee 

Schedule)

Additional Meter Set 

Fee Due (Per Current 

Fee Schedule) Date Paid

Total Additional 

Amount Collected 

Prior to Meter Set

8/30/2018 2579 12963 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 15,000.00$ 540.00$  4,000.00$               115.00$                 1/13/2022 4,115.00$          

6/12/2020 3076 9793 Fairway Glen Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   1/20/2022 2,055.00$          

12/18/2020 3233 12658 Windingwalk Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   1/20/2022 2,055.00$          
11/24/2020 3208 12571 Granite Springs Pl Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   1/21/2022 2,055.00$          10,280.00$ Jan-22

11/27/2019 2889 13075 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 16,000.00$ 575.00$  3,000.00$               80.00$                   2/9/2022 3,080.00$          

2/28/2020 2963 13028 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/9/2022 2,055.00$          

11/24/2020 3205 12571 Stone Valley Dr Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/17/2022 2,055.00$          

11/24/2020 3209 12565 Granite Springs Pl Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/17/2022 2,055.00$          

11/24/2020 3206 12563 Stone Valley Dr Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/24/2022 2,055.00$          

11/24/2020 3210 12559 Granite Springs Pl Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/24/2022 2,055.00$          

11/24/2020 3211 12553 Granite Springs Pl Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/24/2022 2,055.00$          

11/24/2020 3212 12547 Granite Springs Pls Century Comm 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   2/24/2022 2,055.00$          

11/29/2018 2669 12956 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 15,000.00$ 540.00$  4,000.00$               115.00$                 2/24/2022 4,115.00$          

11/29/2018 2670 12964 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 15,000.00$ 540.00$  4,000.00$               115.00$                 2/24/2022 4,115.00$          

5/30/2019 2767 13011 Stone Valley Dr Campbell Homes 16,000.00$ 575.00$  3,000.00$               80.00$                   2/24/2022 3,080.00$          

2/18/2021 3273 12818 Windingwalk Dr Reunion Homes 18,000.00$ 625.00$  1,000.00$               30.00$                   2/28/2022 1,030.00$          

2/18/2021 3280 12887 Morning Creek Ln Reunion Homes 18,000.00$ 625.00$  1,000.00$               30.00$                   2/28/2022 1,030.00$          30,835.00$ Feb-22

12/3/2020 3223 9877 Meridian Hills Tr Covington Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   3/8/2022 2,055.00$          

12/3/2020 3224 9885 Meridian Hills Tr Covington Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   3/10/2022 2,055.00$          

9/15/2020 3174 12618 Windingwalk Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   3/11/2022 2,055.00$          

2/18/2021 3272 12814 Windingwalk Dr Reunion Homes 18,000.00$ 625.00$  1,000.00$               30.00$                   3/15/2022 1,030.00$          

2/18/2021 3279 12895 Morning Creek Ln Reunion Homes 18,000.00$ 625.00$  1,000.00$               30.00$                   3/22/2022 1,030.00$          

2/18/2021 3276 9741 Winding Bend Ln Reunion Homes 18,000.00$ 625.00$  1,000.00$               30.00$                   3/29/2022 1,030.00$          

2/18/2022 3281 12879 Morning Creek Ln Reunion Homes 18,000.00$ 625.00$  1,000.00$               30.00$                   3/29/2022 1,030.00$          

3/13/2020 2984 12638 Windingwalk Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   3/31/2022 2,055.00$          

12/18/2020 3235 12670 Windingwalk Dr Campbell Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   3/31/2022 2,055.00$          
6/26/2020 3084 10151 Boulder Creek Wy Covington Homes 17,000.00$ 600.00$  2,000.00$               55.00$                   3/31/2022 2,055.00$          16,450.00$ Mar-22

2022 Total 57,565.00$        

8 of 106



9 of 106



Date Payment Type Vendor Amount

03/23/22 ePayment All Rental Center Inc 676.02$                              

03/23/22 Check Amazon Capital Services 2,477.03$                           

03/23/22 ePayment American Portable Services Inc. 294.00$                              

03/23/22 Check Aqueous Solution Inc. 1,080.60$                           

03/23/22 ePayment Axis Business Technologies 438.90$                              

03/23/22 Check Badger Meter 197.04$                              

03/23/22 Check Brock Eastman 200.00$                              

03/23/22 ePayment Browns Hill Engineering & Controls, LLC 4,211.40$                           

03/23/22 ePayment CEM Sales & Service 3,580.35$                           

03/23/22 Check Club Automation, LLC 1,821.48$                           

03/23/22 Vendor Direct Comcast-MRRC 551.71$                              

03/23/22 Vendor Direct Comcast-Office 319.55$                              

03/23/22 Vendor Direct CPS Distributors, Inc 74.02$                                

03/23/22 ePayment CSI Group International, Inc 604.49$                              

03/23/22 Check Debra Williams 15.09$                                

03/23/22 Check Discount Tire 4,370.58$                           

03/23/22 Check E-470 Public Highway Authority 9.60$                                  

03/23/22 Check El Paso County Public Health Laboratory 210.00$                              

03/23/22 Check Falcon Environmental Corporation 5,475.74$                           

03/23/22 Check Front Range Winwater 470.15$                              

03/23/22 Check Grainger 134.26$                              

03/23/22 Check GTL Development Inc. 1,466.51$                           

03/23/22 Check HelloSpoke 722.93$                              

03/23/22 ePayment JDS-Hydro Consultants, Inc. 11,319.31$                         

03/23/22 ePayment LONG Building Technologies 3,249.00$                           

03/23/22 Vendor Direct Morning Star Elevator, LLC 2,274.00$                           

03/23/22 Check Mountain View Electric Association 53,794.80$                         

03/23/22 Vendor Direct Mug-A-Bug Pest Control 62.00$                                

03/23/22 Vendor Direct O'Reilly Automotive 51.41$                                

03/23/22 Check Progressive Services, Inc. 859.00$                              

03/23/22 Check Shops at Meridian Ranch, LLC 3,949.70$                           

03/23/22 Check Thomas General Contractors 67,130.80$                         

03/23/22 Check Utility Maintenance and Inspections LLC 14,677.30$                         

03/23/22 Check Utility Notification Center of Colorado 460.20$                              

03/23/22 Vendor Direct Waste Management of Colorado Springs 681.98$                              

03/23/22 Check Whisler Industrial Supply 1,759.06$                           

03/23/22 Check WHMD Woodmen Hills Metropolitan District 7,518.39$                           

Total Payments 37  Amount of Payments 197,188.40$                       

Meridian Service Metropolitan District

Vendor Payment Register Report - Summary

Finance Committee - Interim Payments

March 23, 2022

10 of 106



 

   

MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
Water, Wastewater, Parks and Recreation 
11886 Stapleton Dr, Falcon, CO 80831 
719-495-6567, Fax 719-495-3349 

 

 
DATE: March 23, 2022 
 
TO:  MSMD Board of Directors 
 
RE:  Finance Committee Report 
 
 
On March 23, 2022 the Board’s Finance Committee, Directors Gabrielski and Reorda (in 
Director Sauer’s absence) met with Jim Nikkel, General Manager and Jennette Coe, AFS 
Manager. The following is a summary of the meeting: 
 

 
 The Finance Committee approved interim MSMD payments in the amount of 

$197,188.40 and directed staff to put these on the Board’s April 2022 agenda for 
ratification. 
 

 Staff reviewed bank account details for both ColoTrust and Wells Fargo including 
status of investment funds and user access/permissions.  The ColoTrust 
investment accounts have recorded an unrealized loss that the FC agrees is 
indicative of long-term investments and believes it will recover over time.  There is 
not a foreseeable need for the funds that are in the account affected in the current 
year. 
 

 Staff provided FC with January 2022 unaudited Balance Sheet and Statement of 
Cash Flows for review. 
 
 

 

 
Submitted by: 

 

___________________________________ 
Milton B. Gabrielski, Finance Committee Chair 

11 of 106



Jan 22

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net Income -40,754.43
Adjustments to reconcile Net Income
to net cash provided by operations:

1400110 · Accounts Receivable -860,687.46
1400115 · Accounts Receivable - Fund 15 114,624.11
1400116 · Accounts Receivable - Fund 16 205,114.55
1400140 · Accounts Receivable - Fund 40 262,720.58
1400150 · Accounts Receivable - Fund 50 197,584.70
1400200 · Accounts Receivable - Non UB -37,294.00
1500100 · Prepaid Insurance 11,002.00
1500300 · Prepaid Rent 3,662.74
1500400 · Prepaid Interest 351,619.86
3000000 · Accounts Payable -85,147.83
3070100 · Chase Credit Card -3,723.12
3070102 · Chase C/C - Ryan Kozlowksi 2,049.80
3070103 · Chase C/C - Jennette Coe 359.58
3070108 · Chase C/C - Jim Nikkel 164.77
3110100 · Payroll Taxes Payable -3,967.33
3110200 · Payroll Payable -23,545.30
3110300 · Employee Paid Ins Contrib. -0.12
3110400 · Retirement Payable -438.65
3120000 · Retainage Payable 1,800.63
3150000 · Due to MRMD -327,000.00

Net cash provided by Operating Activities -231,854.92

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
4000100 · Comprehensive Income -7,400.41

Net cash provided by Financing Activities -7,400.41

Net cash increase for period -239,255.33

Cash at beginning of period 11,813,241.00

Cash at end of period 11,573,985.67

12:01 PM Meridian Service Metropolitan District

03/22/22 Statement of Cash Flows - Unaudited
January 2022

For Management Purposes Page 1

12 of 106

jcoe
Typewriter
Taps rcv'd at Year End txfrd in 2022

jcoe
Polyline

jcoe
Typewriter
Reversing YE JE's in order to capture 2021 YE AR balance per fund

jcoe
Typewriter
CMD 1st Bond Pmt Interest pd in 2021



Jan 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings 11,573,985.67
Accounts Receivable 2,284,641.37
Other Current Assets 121,165.00

Total Current Assets 13,979,792.04

Fixed Assets 43,904,758.65
Other Assets 908,288.25

TOTAL ASSETS 58,792,838.94

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 394,368.55
Credit Cards -9,069.05
Other Current Liabilities 14,079,786.52

Total Current Liabilities 14,465,086.02

Long Term Liabilities 23,573,481.64

Total Liabilities 38,038,567.66

Equity 20,754,271.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 58,792,838.94

11:39 AM Meridian Service Metropolitan District

03/23/22 Balance Sheet Summary - Unaudited
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2022

For Management Purposes Page 1

13 of 106



Jan 31, 22

ASSETS
Current Assets

Checking/Savings
1000000 · Operating Funds

1000100 · Wells Fargo - Operating 2,241,459.68
1000300 · Petty Cash 384.38

Total 1000000 · Operating Funds 2,241,844.06

1072 · Bill.com Money Out Clearing -0.60
110000 · Non-Operating Funds

1100101 · ColoTrust - CTF from MRMD E001 38,134.32
1100201 · ColoTrust - Reserve E002 2,095,763.25
1100400 · ColoTrust - Sewer Reserve 8004 18,536.18
1100401 · ColoTrust - Sewer Reserve E003 385,885.19
1100500 · ColoTrust - Cap Projects 8005 1,450,094.45
1100501 · ColoTrust - Cap Projects E004 4,216,735.28
1100601 · ColoTrus - Rate Stabiliz E005 650,364.50
1100901 · Bank of the San Juans -Reserves 476,629.04

Total 110000 · Non-Operating Funds 9,332,142.21

Total Checking/Savings 11,573,985.67

Accounts Receivable
1400000 · Accounts Receivable

1400100 · UB Accounts Receivable 860,687.46

1400200 · Accounts Receivable - Non UB 1,423,953.91

Total 1400000 · Accounts Receivable 2,284,641.37

Total Accounts Receivable 2,284,641.37

Other Current Assets
1500000 · Prepaid Expenses

1500100 · Prepaid Insurance 121,165.00

Total 1500000 · Prepaid Expenses 121,165.00

Total Other Current Assets 121,165.00

Total Current Assets 13,979,792.04

Fixed Assets
2100000 · Fixed Assets

2110000 · Non-Depreciable Assets
2110100 · Water Rights 257,084.50

Total 2110000 · Non-Depreciable Assets 257,084.50

2120000 · Depreciable Assets
2120100 · Water System 33,886,165.56
2120200 · Wastewater System 18,251,913.49
2120400 · Systems - Acc. Dep. -20,196,447.35

Total 2120000 · Depreciable Assets 31,941,631.70

2130000 · Recreation Assets
2130100 · Recreation Facilities 15,709,046.83
2130300 · Recreation - Acc. Dep. -4,316,269.65

Total 2130000 · Recreation Assets 11,392,777.18

11:33 AM Meridian Service Metropolitan District

03/23/22 Balance Sheet - Unaudited
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2022

For Management Purposes Page 1

14 of 106



Jan 31, 22

2140000 · Vehicles & Equipment
2140100 · Vehicles & Equipment 437,300.49
2140300 · Vehicles & Equipment - Acc. Dep -124,035.22

Total 2140000 · Vehicles & Equipment 313,265.27

Total 2100000 · Fixed Assets 43,904,758.65

Total Fixed Assets 43,904,758.65

Other Assets
1600000 · Other Assets

1600100 · Security Deposit 11,580.00

Total 1600000 · Other Assets 11,580.00

2000000 · Construction in Progress
2010101 · CIP Build-Out CIP&Funding Plan 7,742.50
2040103 · CIP Guthrie Well Area B & Line 2,686.00
2040108 · CIP Well Site No. 5, 7 & 8 522,928.46
2040109 · CIP Eastonville Raw Water Pipe 8,469.95
2050002 · CIP Woodmen Hills Sewer Bypass 354,881.34

Total 2000000 · Construction in Progress 896,708.25

Total Other Assets 908,288.25

TOTAL ASSETS 58,792,838.94

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities

Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable 394,368.55

Credit Cards -9,069.05

Other Current Liabilities
3100000 · Other Current Liabilities

3110000 · Payroll Liabilities 297.22

3120000 · Retainage Payable 155,012.30
3140000 · Accr Int Payable - Developer 13,591,477.00
3160000 · Deposits Held 4,000.00
3180300 · Bank of San Juan Loan-Current 329,000.00

Total 3100000 · Other Current Liabilities 14,079,786.52

Total Other Current Liabilities 14,079,786.52

Total Current Liabilities 14,465,086.02

Long Term Liabilities
3500000 · Long Term Liabilities

3500100 · Notes Payable 9,315,476.39
3500200 · Cherokee - New WWTP (LT Liab) 9,911,005.25
3500300 · Bank of San Juan TDS Loan 4,347,000.00

Total 3500000 · Long Term Liabilities 23,573,481.64

Total Long Term Liabilities 23,573,481.64

Total Liabilities 38,038,567.66

Equity
4000000 · Fund Balance(Retained Earnings) 20,807,804.70
4000100 · Comprehensive Income -12,778.99
Net Income -40,754.43

Total Equity 20,754,271.28

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 58,792,838.94

11:33 AM Meridian Service Metropolitan District

03/23/22 Balance Sheet - Unaudited
Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2022

For Management Purposes Page 2

15 of 106



MSMD Operations Report for March 2022 
 

March water demand and production hovering around 350 gallons per minute. Water 
operations completed the monthly Bac-T and 1st quarter sampling. Monthly water meter 
reading and water usage was performed on 3-25-22. The recent meter change out at the rec 
center was read and appears to be working properly.  The last radio used for SCADA monitoring 
dropped out March 24th in the evening.  The following Friday was spent pulling new wire for 
connection to nearby upgraded SCADA equipment.  LFH#9 cooked a power supply inside the 
SCADA panel requiring replacement. The final electrical inspection and sign for mid-point 
electrical improvements was performed by Regional Building .  During the inspection, repairs 
were noted by the inspector requiring immediate attention, which have been repaired.  
Progress continues with filter plant and piping expansion.  A check in meeting was held with JDS 
Hydro, Filtronics, and Browns Hill to discuss integration of the filter plant expansion with 
existing telemetry.  Two replacement filter vessel flow control valves have been ordered and 
awaiting delivery. 

Parks and drainage continued weekly pond inspections and removed trash collected in 
the drainage channels as needed. Crew attended a 2-day class covering Sentential irrigation 
controller. Staff has been thoroughly inspecting playground equipment, creating a parts list, 
and inspection form. Tree removal continued weather permitting between snowstorms 

Staff performed weekly infiltration gallery inspections and recorded water level logging 
data. Monthly flow measurement and calculations taken on 3-28-22. Minimal moisture 
continues to keep weir water levels down.   

The irrigation pond intake remains plugged and the temporary bypass fill line able to 
maintain golf course irrigation water demand. A floating intake installation is underway but 
requires draining the pond and installing a float for the intake. The golf course started a pre-
spring fire up on 3-14-22 to water in recent applied fertilizer.  Pond levels continue to drop to 
expose plugged intake. 

Wastewater operations staff completed weekly composite sampling and drop off to 
Cherokee. Maintenance was performed to the grit pump.  A frozen pressure check valve was 
found faulty requiring attention.  The valve was replaced and repair parts will be ordered to 
rebuild for a spare.  Wastewater operations staff also assisted locating and raising vaults with 
water ops and assisted parks & drainage with dead tree and snow removal. Weekly Hydrogen 
Sulfide (H2S) and Total Dissolved Solids (TDS) samples were collected during weekly sewer flow 
meter inspections. Falcon lift station chemical continues to track accordingly based on injection 
rates.  
  

16 of 106



 
Upcoming or continued water tasks: 

• Monthly meter reading (completed 1-27-22, 2-28, 3-25, 4-25. 5-25, 6-25, 7-25, 8-25,  
9-25, 10-25) 
Monthly Bac-T sampling (Jan, Feb, Mar, Apr, May, Jun, Jul, Aug, Sept, Oct, Nov, Dec) 

• 1st  Quarter monitoring and sampling 

• 2nd Quarter monitoring and sampling 

• 3rd Quarter monitoring and sampling 

• 4th Quarter monitoring and sampling 

• Well step testing (mid-February 2-8, 2-10, 2-18, 2-25-22 ) 

• Lead and Copper Sampling (bi-yearly) 
Upcoming or continued parks and drainage: 

• Continue irrigation repairs/testing (in progress) 

• 2022 annual backflow testing (completed) 

• Irrigation spring start up 

• Irrigation winterization  

• Continue fence repairs (in progress) 

• Mulch/rock replacement in planter beds (in progress) 

• Dead tree removal (in progress) 
 

Upcoming or continued wastewater tasks: 

• Sewer force main air vac maintenance/vault inspections (mid-February) 

• Sewer force main flow meter replacement/relocate 

• Infiltration pit maintenance (in progress) 

• Infiltration pit logger installs (2) (pending weather, in progress) 

• Sewer line maintenance (pending) 
 

17 of 106



Quality Site Assessment
Prepared for:

Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di

Mon Mar 28 2022

18 of 106



 / 2 6

General Information

Customer Focus Areas

Main roads throughout community

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di

DATE:

NEXT INSPECTION DATE:

CLIENT ATTENDEES:

BRIGHTVIEW ATTENDEES:

Monday, Mar 28, 2022

Friday, Jun 24, 2022

Braden McCrory, Alexks Myszkowski 

Robert Beacon 

19 of 106



 / 3 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di

The spring clean up has
begun this week. The

crews will be working on this for
the next two weeks.

Final process for the 2022
maintenance contract is

being completed. Contract will
be fully executed in the coming
week.

Winter policing will continue
on the jobsite until mid

April. After that our crew will be
onsite everyday completing the
summer policing.

We will start removing tree
wrap this week as we are

completing the spring clean up.

1 2

3 4

1

2

3

4

20 of 106



 / 4 6

Maintenance Items

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di

Pre emergent will start
being applied on the

property this week.

Aeration will be started as
soon as we have a lot of

the irrigation on throughout the
property. This will ensure we
are pulling decent plugs as we
complete the work.

5 6

5

6

21 of 106



 / 5 6

Recommendations for Property Enhancements

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di

Mulch is needed in a
majority of the beds

throughout the community. I will
be working closely with Aleks
and Braden on putting a
proposal together for strategic
areas in the property.

Additional playground
mulch

throughout the community
is needed. I will put together a
proposal and send over to
Braden and Aleks for review..

1 2

1

2

22 of 106



 / 6 6

Notes to Owner / Client

QUALITY SITE ASSESSMENT
Meridian Ranch Metropolitan Di

Stonebridge Filling 3 has
been walked. All needed

plant material has been marked
on a map and will be getting
installed as soon as the water is
turned on for the season.

We will be substituting the
annual flowers this year

for perennial flowers. I will be
working with the district in the
coming moth to make this
happen.

1

2

1

2

23 of 106



2 0 2 2  Br igh t View  Lan dscap e  Man agem en t  Gan t t  Ch art  

 Mer id ian  Ran ch  METRO DISTRICT
Operation Occ. Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Mow,Trim and Clean-up 26 OO OOOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OO

Aerate 2

Weed Control Beds 26 OO OOOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OO

Pre Emerge Beds 2 O

Round up Cracks and creavous 26 OO OOOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OO

Bed Weed Maintanence 52 OOOO OOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOOO OOOOOOOO OOOOOOOO OOOOOOOO OOOO

Edge Curbs and Walks 13 O OO OO OO OO OO O

Turf Fertilization Program 3 O  O  

Broadleaf Turf Spray 3 O O

Mow Native Grass (Londonderry) 6 O O O O O O

Mow Native Trails and Fencelines 12 OO OO OO OO OO OO

Mowing Native (Open Spaces) 2 O O

Inspect Property With Grounds 3 O O O

Broadleaf Native Spray 3 O O

Prune Ornamental Grass 1

Prune Shrubs 7 O O O O O O O

Plant Heath Care Program 2 O O

Spot Prune Trees (Below 12') 7 O O O O O O O

Spot Prune Trees (Above 12') 1 O

Spray Tree Rings 2 O O

Shrub Maintanence Powery Mold etc 2 O O

Tree Wrap On/Off 2 O

Spring Clean Up 1

Fall Clean Up 1 O O

Backflow Check 1 O

Annual Flowers 1 O

Winter Watering 3 O O O

Winter anit desiccant 1 O

Trash Summer and Winter 52 OOOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OOOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OOOO OOOOO OOOO OOOOO

Site Inspection QSA Report 12 O O O O O O O O O O O O 

O - Operation to be Completed

O - Operation In progress

O - Operation Completed

O

O

O O

O

O

O

O

O

24 of 106



April 6th, 2022 Recreation Board Report  

 

Usage Numbers March 1-31, 2022 

Total Attendance – 11899 

Group Ex – 696 participants. Of those we received $332 from non-members 

Childcare attendance – 342 

Childcare Spring Break programming – 33 Children collecting $955 

Parties – 6. 5 Swim parties and 1 room rental 

Revenue collected - $12,888.38 

 

Pulse Check:  

 The recreation center saw its busiest month of the year with D49 being on two 

weeks of spring break. We were staffed well and handled the rush while providing 

additional programs over the break. The D49 breaks never fail to provide us with 

teenager issues. We have begun to enforce policy of having zero non-members pass the 

desk unless they are paying for a guest pass or taking a class/program. We will no longer 

be permitting non-members to use our restrooms. Staff will continue to accompany non-

members on tours of the recreation center.   

 The lobby remodel has been completed and we began working from the new desk 

on March 29th. Member comments have been nothing but positive and the staff loves the 

new design. Other maintenance items we are working on are as follows; basketball hoop 

pully has been ordered, lily pads have been ordered, shade structure contractor scheduled 

to come out and see the site, shed design/quote in process, fitness equipment on order 

should be here week of board meeting, broken gym window on order, and many other 

small issues. The elevator has been down for weeks due to a proprietary part needing to 

be ordered. This repair cost roughly $16,000 and has put a giant crater in our building 

maintenance budget for the year. We are hoping for no other major repairs in 2022.  

 Indoor soccer is beginning in April and registration has been strong. Group and 

private swim lessons and picking up as members begin to think about summer and the 

weather gets warmer. We are beginning AOA activities on Tuesdays and Thursday from 

1-3pm starting April 11th. Tuesdays they will be playing board games in the auditorium, 

and Thursdays will be water volleyball in the indoor lap lanes.  

 We our hosting our Easter Egg Hunt on April 16th and have changed the hunt from 

an underwater hunt in the indoor pool, to a traditional egg hunt in Longview park. We 

will have games, food trucks, and an appearance from the Easter Bunny. 

25 of 106



 Falcon Freedom Day’s planning is well underway, and I have provided a handout 

of the 2022 sponsor package for review. We will begin fund raising immediately and 

getting all our vendors and booths scheduled.  

 Outdoor pool opening is on our radar and we will begin that process at the end of 

April.  

26 of 106



 

 
March 14, 2022 

 

Mr. Ryan Kozlowski,  

Recreation Operations Manager 

Falcon Freedom Days 

Meridian Ranch Metro District 

11886 Stapleton Drive 

Falcon, CO 80831 

 

Hi Ryan: 

 

I hope all is going well for you and your family, and that you are staying busy.  We seem to be busy 

ourselves, but with the crazy world in which we live, we know things can change in a heartbeat.  Anyway, 

we just keep going forward and hope for the best. 

 

I have spoken with Mike Carlisle, and I understand that your community decided to have your annual 

fireworks display on July 2nd this year, which will work fine for our staffing capabilities.  Mike told me 

that he explained to you that the cost of fireworks increased dramatically, which is due to Chinese 

fireworks suppliers and especially the astronomical cost of shipping fireworks (explosives).  We 

completely understand that you need to keep your budget for fireworks the same as last year, and with 

that in mind, I adjusted the sizes and types of aerial shells around in your program to maintain the same 

$26,250.00 contract price. 

 

Mike also mentioned that you are moving the firing location of the fireworks to the school property, 

which is good because we can concentrate on Aerial Shells to sustain the power of the display.   

 

You will find our “Fireworks Production Contract” enclosed for your review.  Our program of course 

includes our $5,000,000 Fireworks Liability Insurance coverage (naming all necessary additional 

insureds, copy attached), a crew of certified pyrotechnic operators to handle the “load-in, firing and load-

out” of the fireworks, securing all applicable fireworks permits (including the $500 permit application 

through your fire authority), and of course delivery.  Our pyrotechnic operators are covered by worker 

compensation insurance, with statutory limits of the state of Colorado. 

 

As usual, Mike will work directly with your Fire Authorities to coordinate all of the necessary security 

elements, safety perimeter and logistics of your show.  From that information, we will submit the 

Fireworks Display Permit application to the Fire Authorities, which will include the “Site Diagram” of the 

proposed firing location and the safety distances from that firing location to the audience, automobile 

parking and buildings.   

 

 

Creating the Spectrum of Pyrotechnic Production Excellence 

Post Office Box 60 – Carrier, Oklahoma 73727 (580-855-2203) 

27 of 106



 

 

Mr. Ryan Kozlowski 

March 14, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 

We have also programmed the same duration for your display as last year, which is 15-minutes in length.  

Your display will sustain a consistent tempo throughout the show, maintaining the dynamics and power to 

entertain your audience. 

 

Ryan, we want to thank you again for allowing us the privilege of staging the fireworks for Falcon 

Freedom Days, and it is our personal commitment to stage a production that is distinct in its creativity, 

unique in its design and logistically complimenting your site requirements at your venue.  We will 

produce a special music arrangement for your performance, our choreographer will design the 

pyrotechnics around that music, and our pyrotechnic operators will professionally handle the staging of 

the pyrotechnics for your production. 

 

Once again, we thank you for allowing us the honor of submitting our Pyrotechnic Production Proposal 

for your consideration, and we ask that if you have any questions, please contact us immediately. 

 

With our best wishes we remain, 

 

Respectfully, 

 
Jim Burnett 

WESTERN ENTERPRISES, INC. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Creating the Spectrum of Pyrotechnic Production Excellence 

Post Office Box 60 – Carrier, Oklahoma 73727 (580-855-2203) 

28 of 106



 

 
 

Western Enterprises, Inc. 
 

(Performance at Montreal International Fireworks Competition 2016) 

 

Pyrotechnic Production Proposal 
 

Meridian Ranch 

Falcon, Colorado 
 July 2, 2022 

 

 
 

Attn: Mr. Ryan Kozlowski 

MERIDIAN RANCH METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 
 

 
 

 
Creating the Spectrum of Pyrotechnic Production Excellence 

29 of 106



 

 

FIREWORKS PRODUCTION CONTRACT 
 

1. This Fireworks Production Contract (“Contract”) is entered into this__ day of _______, 20___ by 

and between WESTERN ENTERPRISES, INC., designated herein as the “SELLER” and MERIDIAN 

SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT designated herein as the “PURCHASER” for a musically-

choreographed fireworks display that will be held on JULY 2, 2022. 

2. SELLER will secure, prepare and deliver said fireworks display as outlined, or will make 

necessary substitutions of equal or greater value.  SELLER will include the services of a certified 

Pyrotechnic Operator (“Operator) to take charge of, set up and fire the display, along with such help as he 

deems necessary to perform the fireworks display safely (“Assistant(s)”), and in accordance with such 

Federal, State or Local laws that might be applicable. 

3. SELLER shall submit a Fireworks Display Permit Application with the Falcon Fire Protection 

District within fourteen days of the execution of this Contract and will pay the applicable permit 

application fee. 

4. SELLER shall be responsible for any damage caused to any persons or property by virtue of the 

fireworks display.  SELLER agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless PURCHASER from any 

and all claims arising from or in any way directly related to the fireworks display. In the event of any 

breach of this Contract, or any failure on behalf of the SELLER to defend, indemnify and hold harmless 

PURCHASER, PURCHASER shall be entitled to any and all legal and/or equitable remedies. 

5. SELLER agrees to execute the Illegal Alien Workers Addendum attached hereto and incorporated 

herein. 

6. SELLER agrees that the Operator and Assistant(s) are to check the display area after the 

presentation of the fireworks display for any “duds” or other material, which might not have ignited.  Any 

such material, found by any person other than the Operator, shall be turned over to the Operator for 

safekeeping or disposal of said material. 

7. PURCHASER will furnish the secured minimum safety distances established by the SELLER 

after an on-site inspection of the proposed firing location.  PURCHASER will provide adequate police 

protection, Security (Monitors) around the firing line perimeter, and, and/or other adequate security to 

maintain these distances. PURCHASER also agrees to have a fire truck available on location during the 

display, provide sand for set-up, front-end loader for set-up, and security during time of set-up and show 

firing. 

8. A Certificate of Insurance covering the fireworks display will be provided by the SELLER upon 

signing of the contract, for coverage in the amount of FIVE MILLION DOLLARS ($5,000,000.00) 

broad form, bodily injury, property damage liability and comprehensive automobile liability Combined 

Single Limit.  Pyrotechnic operators for SELLER are covered by statutory limits for Workers 

Compensation Coverage.  Those entities/individuals listed on the certificate of insurance shall be deemed 

as additional insured per this contract.   

 

 

 

30 of 106



 

Fireworks Production Contract 

July 2, 2022 

Page 2 

 

 

9. It is agreed and understood that the PURCHASER will pay to the SELLER the sum of 

TWENTY-SIX THOUSAND TWO HUNDRED FIFTY DOLLARS & NO/100 ($26,250.00) to be 

paid as follows: 40% ($10,500.00) of the purchase price will be paid by PURCHASER at the time of 

signing this contact.  The balance of the purchase price will be paid within fifteen (15) days after the date 

of the display.  Unpaid accounts are subject to one percent (1%) interest charge per month after fifteen 

days. 

10. In the event of inclement weather or other adverse conditions, so as to cause postponement of the 

fireworks display it is agreed and understood that PURCHASER will notify SELLER regarding the 

postponement date, normally the following night, or at some future date within the calendar year.  If the 

PURCHASER will not re-schedule the display within the calendar year, or completely cancels the 

fireworks display, the PURCHASER agrees that SELLER will retain the Forty percent (40%) payment 

described in paragraph #9 as full payment for cancellation of the fireworks display. It is understood and 

agreed that SELLER shall be solely responsible for failure of the performance of the fireworks display 

for any reason under SELLERS control and shall refund all monies previously paid by the 

PURCHASER in the event of any such failure. 

11. This Contract constitutes the whole agreement between the parties and no additional or different 

oral representation, promise or agreement shall be binding on any of the parties hereto with respect to the 

subject matter of this Contract.  

 

12. Except as otherwise provided herein, this Contract may be modified, altered, amended or 

terminated only by written agreement of all of the parties hereto. 

 

13. In the event that legal action is instituted to enforce any of the provisions of this Contract, the 

prevailing party shall recover from the losing party its reasonable attorneys' fees and court costs. 

14. The parties hereto understand and agree that the PURCHASER is relying on and does not waive 

or intend to waive by this Contract or any provision hereof, the monetary limitations or any other rights, 

immunities, and protections provided by the Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. Section 24-

10-101, et seq., as from time to time amended, or otherwise available to the PURCHASER. 

15. Witness whereof, we have caused our signatures to be affixed to this Contract, on this __ day of 

___________, 20___. 

 

WESTERN ENTERPRISES, INC.   MERIDIAN SERVICE  

SELLER      METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

PURCHASER 

____________________________   _____________________________   

BY:      ____   BY:  Milton B. Gabrielski_____ 

ITS:__________________________   ITS:_President_______________   

31 of 106



 

ADDENDUM 

 

Western Enterprises, Inc. ("Contractor"), a party to the contract entered into on________________, 20___ with the 

Meridian Service Metropolitan District ("Contract") hereby agrees to comply with the requirements of this 

Addendum as a requirement of the Contract. 

 

Illegal Alien Workers.  The Contractor shall comply with any and all federal, state and local laws, rules and 

regulations regarding the hiring of employees and retention of subcontractors, including without limitation Section 

8-17.5-101 et seq., C.R.S. The Contractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 

work under this Contract or contract with a sub-contractor who (a) knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal 

alien to perform work under the Contract, or (b) fails to certify to the Contractor that the subcontractor will not 

knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under the Contract.   

 

The Contractor hereby certifies that it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien. The Contractor 

shall participate in either the E-Verify Employment Verification Program administered by the United States 

Department of Homeland Security (“E-Verify Program”) or the State’s Department Program established pursuant 

to C.R.S. 8-17.5-102(5)(c) to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for 

employment to perform work under the Contract. The Contractor shall not utilize the E-Verify Program or the 

Department Program procedures to independently undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants. 

 

The Contractor shall require each subcontractor to certify that subcontractor will not knowingly employ or contract 

with an illegal alien to perform work under the Contract. If Contractor obtains actual knowledge that a 

subcontractor performing work under the Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien, 

Contractor shall be required to: (a) notify the subcontractor and the Company within three (3) days that Contractor 

has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting with an illegal alien; and (b) terminate the 

subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) days of receiving notice from Contractor, the subcontractor 

does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien; except that Contractor shall not terminate the contract 

with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor provides information to establish that the 

subcontractor has not knowingly employed or contracted with an illegal alien. Contractor shall comply with any 

reasonable request by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment ("Department") made in the course of 

an investigation by the Department pursuant to Section 8-17.5-102(5), C.R.S. 

 

In addition to any other legal or equitable remedy Meridian Service Metropolitan District (the “District”) may be 

entitled to for a breach of the Contract, if the District terminates the Contract, in whole or in part, due to the 

Contractor's breach of any of this Addendum, the Contractor shall be liable for actual and consequential damages 

of the District resulting from such termination, and the District shall report such violation by the Contractor to the 

Colorado Secretary of State as required by law. 

32 of 106



 

 

 

Executed this ___ day of ______________ , 2022 .   

 

WESTERN ENTERPRISES, INC.   MERIDIAN SERVICE  

SELLER      METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

PURCHASER 

____________________________   ___________________________________  

  

BY: ___________________________  BY: ________________________________ 

ITS:__________________________   ITS:_________________________________ 

  

33 of 106



 

 

 

FALCON FREEDOM DAYS     Mr. Ryan Kozlowski 

FALCON, COLORADO      Recreation Operations Manager 

JULY 2, 2022        Meridian Ranch Metro District 

11886 Stapleton Drive 

         Falcon, Colorado 80831 

Phone:  719-495-7119   

 ryan.k@meridanservice.org 

 

 

* * * PYROTECHNIC PRODUCTION PROPOSAL * * * 
 

As a beginning declaration, the following program proposal details a combination of the very best 

pyrotechnic products available.  All ideas, concepts and itemized product listing in this proposal are 

deemed confidential, intended solely for the client's review, and should not be disseminated to anyone 

other than the client. 

 

Western Enterprises, Inc. is honored to have the opportunity to submit this pyrotechnic production 

program for the “2022 FALCON FREEDOM DAYS” Fireworks Spectacular on July 2nd.  We 

understand the importance of this significant event to the MERIDIAN RANCH AREA and we can assure 

you that Western Enterprises, Inc. is committed to staging an evening of pyrotechnic "magic" for your 

audience. 

 

Western Enterprises, Inc. is very proud of the fact that we are able to provide our clientele with the utmost 

highest quality pyrotechnic products in our entire industry.  And with our ability to intersperse specialized 

products that are American-Made, we are able to showcase premier products that are quite unlike any 

others in the industry.  We have had the privilege to premier our products in numerous International 

Fireworks Competitions and it will be a privilege for us to stage these products for your event. 

 

Having provided you with the above information, we need to confirm several elements that are 

important to your production. 

 

1.  PLANNING CONSIDERATIONS.  The following factors must be considered to assure the success 

of this production. 

 

a. Duration.  The duration of this display will be determined through an agreement between the 

client and Western Enterprises, but it is tentatively scheduled to be 15-minutes in duration. 

 

 

 

34 of 106

mailto:ryan.k@meridanservice.org


 

TO:  MR. RYAN KOZLOWSKI 

CLIENT: FALCON FREEDOM DAYS at MERIDAN RANCH 

DATE: JULY 2, 2022 

PAGE: TWO 

 

 

 

b. Musical Accompaniment.  This performance is scheduled to be staged to a special musical 

arrangement, which Western Enterprises will produce a music medley for your event that you can 

coordinate a simulcast with a radio station and/or play over a social media platform in 

coordination during the fireworks display. 

 

      c.  Permits.  All fireworks permits, clearances and other documentation regarding the pyrotechnics; 

           whether federal, state or municipal, is the responsibility of Western Enterprises, Inc. 

 

      d.  Preliminary Meetings.  Upon approval of the contract by the SPONSOR, our associate Mike 

Carlisle will meet with representatives of Meridian Ranch to discuss the safety parameters of the  

event as they pertain to ensuring the minimum safety distance factors from spectators and parking  

areas are adequately secured.  It is the responsibility of the SPONSOR to provide adequate  

security personnel to maintain these distances to ensure the safety of spectators. 

 

      e.  Labor.  Western Enterprises, Inc. will provide a crew of certified pyrotechnic operators to handle  

           the “load-in, firing and load-out” of the fireworks.  

            

      f.  Insurance.  All insurance requirements will be provided, including; $5,000,000 Display coverage  

          for Broad Form, Contractual, Bodily Injury and Property Damage, and $5,000,000 liability  

          coverage for all vehicles hauling explosives.  Colorado State Worker's Compensation coverage on 

          all Western Enterprises' technicians. 

 

2.  MUSIC REQUIREMENTS.  This pyrotechnic performance will be designed, choreographed and 

fired to a special music arrangement.  Western Enterprises, Inc. will produce a special music arrangement 

for your production at no additional charge.  This music would be pre-approved by the Client.  Our design 

choreographer will design and choreograph the pyrotechnics to the pre-recorded music and our music 

engineer, Steve Linn, will contact the Sound Contractor for the CLIENT to coordinate the timing and 

synchronization of the music.   

 

3.  GENERAL OVERVIEW OF PERFORMANCE.  Your production requires a tremendous amount 

of time and artistic talent to make it distinctive and unique.  Color combinations and effects are blended 

together to complement each other in the sky during the performance.  Each and every shell is coordinated 

so that every aerial shell will actually break in the sky precisely at the intended moment. 

 

This performance will showcase a wide variety of pyrotechnic products from around the world.  We are 

very excited about the new designer shells we will be staging in your production!   

 

Some of our designer aerial shells for this year are; Crossing Flower Rings, Lemon Strobes, Multi-

layer Pastel Umbrellas, Magic Peonies, Umbrella Brocades, Color Changing Crossettes, Whirling 

Flower Rings w/strobe pistils Brocade Butterflies w/jeweled tip wings, Silver Kimuro Rings w/Pastel 

Color-Changing Pistils, Crackling Coconut Palm Trees and Variegated Dancing Bees. 

 
 

 

35 of 106



 

 

TO:  MR. RYAN KOZLOWSKI 

CLIENT: FALCON FREEDOM DAYS at MERIDAN RANCH 

DATE: JULY 2, 2022 

PAGE: THREE 

 

 

Because your display venue has changed, we have removed the low-level “multi-shot barrages”, because 

they would not be visible for your audience from greater distances.  We have also increased the size of 

your aerial shells to a maximum size of six-inch (6”) diameter. 

 

As in any performance, your "GRAND AERIAL FINALE" will provide the most dramatic portion of 

the display, because as in any production, “you save your best until the last"!  Your signature “Grand 

Finale” will be fired in the following sequence beginning with a barrage of Red Flower Shells, followed 

by a barrage of Silver Flower Shells, followed by a barrage of Blue Flower Shells, followed by a barrage 

of luxurious cascading Golden Brocade Kimuro Mums, which is ultimately climaxed by a thunderous 

barrage of reverberating heavy report bombs which brings a thrilling conclusion to the “2022 

FALCON FREEDOM DAYS” AT MERIDIAN RANCH Fireworks Spectacular!    
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

“The sky provides the pyrotechnician’s canvas and our art-form is 

best expressed by how we portray ourselves in the stars” 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

36 of 106



 

TO:  MR. RYAN KOZLOWSKI 

CLIENT: FALCON FREEDOM DAYS at MERIDAN RANCH 

DATE: JULY 2, 2022 

PAGE: FOUR 

 
   

ITEMIZED PRODUCT LISTING 
 

 

GRAND AERIAL FINALE 

 

  60 – 3” RED FLOWER SHELLS (6 - 10/3” Red Flower Chains) 

  60 – 3” SILVER FLOWER SHELLS (6 - 10/3” White Flower Chains) 

  60 – 3” BLUE FLOWER SHELLS (6 - 10/3” Blue Flower Chains) 

  60 – 3” GOLD FLOWER SHELLS (6 - 10/3” Gold Flower Chains) 

    5 – 4” RED FLOWER SHELLS (1 – 5/4” Red Flower Chains) 

    5 – 4” SILVER FLOWER SHELLS (1 – 5/4” White Flower Chains) 

    5 – 4” BLUE FLOWER SHELLS (1 – 5/4” Blue Flower Chains) 

    5 – 4” GOLD FLOWER SHELLS (1 – 5/4” Gold Flower Chains) 

    1 – 5” RED FLOWER SHELLS 

    1 – 5” SILVER FLOWER SHELLS 

    1 – 5” BLUE FLOWER SHELLS 

    1 – 5” GOLD FLOWER SHELLS 

 

    3 – 6” GOLD FLOWER SHELLS 

 

  40 – 3” HEAVY REPORT BOMBS (4 – 10/3” Salute Chains) 

 

 

 

THREE INCH SHELLS (300 Shells) 
 

 20 - AERIAL SALUTES (Heavy reporting bombs) 

  

 30 - FANCY STAR SHELLS (Consisting of:  Ruby, Emerald, Pearl, Blue, Yellow & Purple with 

      Titanium Twinklers & Aluminum Flitter Combinations) 

 
 

  75 - ORIENTAL FLOWER PATTERNS (Consisting of:  Solid Color and Color Changing  

       Chrysanthemums, Peonies & Dahlias)  

 

 35- PATTERN SHELLS (Consisting of:  Rings, Double Rings, Willows, etc.) 

 

 35 – PASTEL COCONUT SHELLS (Consisting of:  Pastel colors in Cyan, Orange, Pink, Violet,  

Magenta, Chartreuse, Peach, etc.) 

 

 35 - DESIGN EFFECT SHELLS (Consisting of:  Color Crossettes, Brocade Falling Waterfalls, Silver  

   Double Rings w/aqua pistils, Poinsettia Flowers, Hourglass w/core, Crackling  

   Diadem Flowers, Silver Turbulence w/flying stars, Kimuro w/crossette core pistils,  

   Double Crackling Time Flower.) 

 

37 of 106



 

TO:  MR. RYAN KOZLOWSKI 

CLIENT: FALCON FREEDOM DAYS at MERIDAN RANCH 

DATE: JULY 2, 2022 

PAGE: FIVE 

 

 

THREE INCH SHELLS (continued) 

 
  35 – PATRIOTIC DESIGNER SHELLS (Consisting of:  Red Bees, Blue Bees, Silver Bees,  

Red Strobes, Silver Strobes, Red w/silver strobes, Blue w/silver strobes, 

Half Red/Half Flower w/strobe pistils, Blue Crisscross, Red Crisscross, 

    Ruby & Sapphire Meteors, Red Magnesium Crackling Meteors, 

    Blue Magnesium Crackling meteors, etc.) 

 

  35 – SPECIAL-MADE COMPETITION SHELLS (Consisting of: Crossing Flower Rings, Lemon  

   Strobes, Sizzling Comets, Magic Peonies, Umbrella Brocades, Color Changing  

   Crossettes, Whirling Flower Rings w/strobe pistils Brocade Butterflies w/jeweled  

   tip wings, Silver Kimuro Rings w/Pastel Color-Changing Pistils, Crackling  

   Coconut Palm Trees and Variegated Dancing Bees) 

 

FOUR INCH SHELLS (235 Shells) 
 

 

  25 - FANCY STAR SHELLS (Consisting of:  Ruby, Emerald, Pearl, Blue, Yellow & Purple with 

      Titanium Twinklers & Aluminum Flitter Combinations) 

 

 

  35 - ORIENTAL FLOWER PATTERNS (Consisting of:  Solid Color and Color Changing  

       Chrysanthemums, Peonies & Dahlias) 

  35 - PATTERN SHELLS (Consisting of:  Rings, Double Rings, Willows, etc.) 

 

  35 – PASTEL COCONUT SHELLS (Consisting of:  Pastel colors in Cyan, Orange, Pink, Violet,  

Magenta, Chartreuse, Peach, etc.) 

 

  35 - DESIGN EFFECT SHELLS (Consisting of:  Color Crossettes, Brocade Falling Waterfalls, Silver  

   Double Rings w/aqua pistils, Poinsettia Flowers, Hourglass w/core, Crackling  

   Diadem Flowers, Silver Turbulence w/flying stars, Kimuro w/crossette core pistils,  

   Double Crackling Time Flower.) 

 

  35 – PATRIOTIC DESIGNER SHELLS (Consisting of:  Red Bees, Blue Bees, Silver Bees,  

Red Strobes, Silver Strobes, Red w/silver strobes, Blue w/silver strobes, 

Half Red/Half Flower w/strobe pistils, Blue Crisscross, Red Crisscross, 

    Ruby & Sapphire Meteors, Red Magnesium Crackling Meteors, 

    Blue Magnesium Crackling meteors, etc.) 

 

  35 – SPECIAL-MADE COMPETITION SHELLS (Consisting of: Crossing Flower Rings, Lemon  

   Strobes, Sizzling Comets, Magic Peonies, Umbrella Brocades, Color Changing  

   Crossettes, Whirling Flower Rings w/strobe pistils Brocade Butterflies w/jeweled  

   tip wings, Silver Kimuro Rings w/Pastel Color-Changing Pistils, Crackling  

   Coconut Palm Trees and Variegated Dancing Bees) 

38 of 106



 

 

TO:  MR. RYAN KOZLOWSKI 

CLIENT: FALCON FREEDOM DAYS at MERIDAN RANCH 

DATE: JULY 2, 2022 

PAGE: SIX 

 

 

FIVE INCH SHELLS (150 Shells) 
 

 

25 - FANCY STAR SHELLS (Consisting of:  Ruby, Emerald, Pearl, Blue, Yellow & Purple with 

      Titanium Twinklers & Aluminum Flitter Combinations) 

 

 

25 - ORIENTAL FLOWER PATTERNS (Consisting of:  Solid Color and Color Changing  

       Chrysanthemums, Peonies & Dahlias) 

20 - PATTERN SHELLS (Consisting of:  Rings, Double Rings, Willows, etc.) 

 

20 – PASTEL COCONUT SHELLS (Consisting of:  Pastel colors in Cyan, Orange, Pink, Violet,  

Magenta, Chartreuse, Peach, etc.) 

 

20 - DESIGN EFFECT SHELLS (Consisting of:  Color Crossettes, Brocade Falling Waterfalls, Silver  

   Double Rings w/aqua pistils, Poinsettia Flowers, Hourglass w/core, Crackling  

   Diadem Flowers, Silver Turbulence w/flying stars, Kimuro w/crossette core pistils,  

   Double Crackling Time Flower.) 

 

20 – PATRIOTIC DESIGNER SHELLS (Consisting of:  Red Bees, Blue Bees, Silver Bees,  

Red Strobes, Silver Strobes, Red w/silver strobes, Blue w/silver strobes, 

Half Red/Half Flower w/strobe pistils, Blue Crisscross, Red Crisscross, 

    Ruby & Sapphire Meteors, Red Magnesium Crackling Meteors, 

    Blue Magnesium Crackling meteors, etc.) 

 

20 – SPECIAL-MADE COMPETITION SHELLS (Consisting of: Crossing Flower Rings, Lemon  

   Strobes, Sizzling Comets, Magic Peonies, Umbrella Brocades, Color Changing  

   Crossettes, Whirling Flower Rings w/strobe pistils Brocade Butterflies w/jeweled  

   tip wings, Silver Kimuro Rings w/Pastel Color-Changing Pistils, Crackling  

   Coconut Palm Trees and Variegated Dancing Bees) 

 

 

 

39 of 106



 

 

TO:  MR. RYAN KOZLOWSKI 

CLIENT: FALCON FREEDOM DAYS at MERIDAN RANCH 

DATE: JULY 2, 2022 

PAGE: SEVEN 

 

 

INSURANCE ON DISPLAY 
 

$5,000,000 Bodily Injury & Property Damage Insurance, Broad Form and Contractual Coverage.   

 

Worker’s Compensation coverage on all technicians 

 

 

MISCELLANEOUS EQUIPMENT 

 

All electronic firing equipment, mortars, racks and other necessary equipment that is necessary for 

Western Enterprises, Inc. to stage the fireworks display are supplied with this contract.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

    DELIVERED CONTRACT PRICE - $26,250.00 

40 of 106



Page 1 of 6 
 

METROPOLITAN DISTRICT GENERAL UTILITY NOTES 
FOR MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT 

MSMD BOARD APPROVED: APRIL 6, 2022 
Approved for Use in Sanctuary at Meridian Ranch Only for 35 foot frontage Lots 

 
 

GENERAL NOTES 

1. MERIDIAN SERVICE METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) CONTACT: 

11886 STAPLETON DR 
FALCON, CO 80831 
PHONE 719-495-6567 
 

2. ALL SANITARY SEWER, POTABLE WATER, RECLAIMED WATER, RAW WATER AND STORM DRAIN 
SYSTEMS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONFORMANCE WITH THE CURRENT MERIDIAN SERVICE 
METROPOLITAN DISTRICT (MSMD) SPECIFICATIONS.   MSMD SPECIFICATIONS HEREINAFTER 
SHALL BE CONSISTENT WITH THE COLORADO SPRINGS UTILITIES SPECIFICATIONS (CSUS) FOR 
WASTEWATER LINE EXTENSION & SERVICE STANDARDS, 2010 EDITION AND THE WATER LIND 
EXTENSION & SERVICE STANDARDS, 2014 EDITION, UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED AND APPROVED. 

3. ALL PLANS ON THE JOB SITE SHALL BE SIGNED AND APPROVED BY MSMD AND MSMD’S 
ENGINEER. ANY REVISION TO THE PLANS SHALL BE APPROVED BY MSMD AND MSMD’S 
ENGINEER AND SO NOTED ON THE PLANS. 

4. ALL MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP SHALL BE SUBJECT TO INSPECTION BY MSMD. MSMD 
RESERVES THE RIGHT TO ACCEPT OR REJECT ANY SUCH MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP THAT 
DOES NOT CONFORM TO MSMD STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS. 

5. ALL PIPE MATERIAL, BACKFILL, AND INSTALLATION SHALL CONFORM TO THE APPLICABLE 
SPECIFICATIONS OF THE EL PASO COUNTY PLANNING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT, 
COLORADO SPRINGS UTILITIES, MSMD, DISTRICT ENGINEER AND THE SOILS ENGINEER. 

6. ALL UTILITY TRENCH BACKFILL SHALL BE PLACED PER THE APPROVED SOILS REPORT 

RECOMMENDATIONS AND UNDER THE DIRECTION OF THE SOILS ENGINEER. TRENCH BACKFILL 

SHALL BE MOISTURE CONDITIONED TO WITHIN 2 PERCENT OF OPTIMUM AND COMPACTED TO 
AT LEAST 95 PERCENT OF MAXIMUM MODIFIED PROCTOR DRY DENSITY (ASTM D 1557) OR 
HIGHER STANDARD AS REQUIRED BY THE EL PASO COUNTY PLANNING AND COMMUNITY 
DEVELOPMENT OR THE SOILS ENGINEER RECOMMENDATION. THIS SHALL INCLUDE ALL MAIN 
LINE, VALVES, FIRE HYDRANT RUNS, WATER & SEWER SERVICE LINES, CLEAN OUTS, INLET BOXES, 
MANHOLES, ETC. A QUALIFIED SOILS ENGINEER SHALL OBSERVE AND TEST THE BACKFILL AND 
COMPACTION OF ALL TRENCHES AND ALL REPORTS SHALL BE SUBMITTED TO MSMD FOR 
REVIEW AND APPROVAL. 

7. CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY THE LOCATION OF ALL EXISTING FACILITIES (ABOVEGROUND AND 
UNDERGROUND) WITHIN THE PROJECT SITE SUFFICIENTLY AHEAD OF CONSTRUCTION TO 
PERMIT THE REVISIONS OF THE CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS IF IT IS FOUND THAT THE ACTUAL 
LOCATIONS ARE IN CONFLICT WITH THE PROPOSED WORK.   

8. ALL WATER AND SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LATERAL LOCATIONS SHALL BE CLEARLY MARKED BY 
STAMPING AN “S” FOR SEWER AND A “W” FOR WATER ON THE CURB FACE AT EACH SERVICE 
LATERAL LOCATION. ALL SLEEVE LOCATIONS SHALL BE CLEARLY MARKED BY STAMPING AN “X” 

41 of 106



Page 2 of 6 
 

ON THE CURB FACE. ALL PRIVATE IRRIGATION SLEEVES SHALL BE MARKED BY STAMPING AN “I” 
ON THE TOP OF THE SIDEWALK. 

9. BENDS, DEFLECTIONS & CUT PIPE LENGTHS SHALL BE USED TO HOLD HORIZONTAL ALIGNMENT 
OF SEWER AND WATER LINES TO NO MORE THAN 0.5' FROM THE DESIGNED ALIGNMENT.  

10. AT ALL LOCATIONS WHERE CAP AND STUB IS NOTED ON DRAWINGS, PROVIDE A PLUG AT THE 
END OF THE PIPE JOINT NEAREST THE SPECIFIED STATION.  PROVIDE A REVERSE ANCHOR AT ALL 
WATER LINE PLUGS AND BLOW OFFS.  

11. ALL EXISTING UTILITY MAINS SHALL BE SUPPORTED AND PROTECTED IN PLACE AND FUNCTION 
CONTINUOUSLY DURING ALL CONSTRUCTION OPERATIONS.  SHOULD A MSMD UTILITY FAIL OR 
BE DAMAGED AS A RESULT OF THE CONSTRUCTION OPERATION, IT SHALL BE REPAIRED 
IMMEDIATELY BY THE CONTRACTOR PER ALL MSMD SPECIFICATIONS. IN THE EVENT THE 
CONTRACTOR CANNOT IMMEDIATELY MAKE THE REPAIRS TO THE FAILED OR DAMAGED MSMD 
UTILITY TO THE SATISFACTION OF MSMD, MSMD MAY REPAIR OR CAUSE THE REPAIR AND BACK 
CHARGE ALL SUCH COSTS TO THE CONTRACTOR.  

12. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REPLACE OR REPAIR ANY AND ALL DAMAGE CAUSED BY THE 
CONTRACTOR DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES TO ALL ABOVE OR BELOW GROUND 
IMPROVEMENTS, INCLUDING BUT NOT LIMITED TO FENCES, LANDSCAPING, CURB, GUTTER, 
SIDEWALK, ASPHALT, ELECTRIC SYSTEMS, GAS SYSTEMS, TELEPHONE/TELEVISION SYSTEMS, ETC.  

13. A PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE MEETING SHALL BE HELD AT THE PROJECT SITE A MINIMUM 
OF 7 DAYS BEFORE CONSTRUCTION BEGINS AND SHALL BE ATTENDED BY ALL REPRESENTATIVES 
RESPONSIBLE FOR CONSTRUCTION, INSPECTION, SUPERVISION, TESTING AND ALL OTHER 
ASPECTS OF THE WORK. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY MSMD AND ALL AFFECTED UTILITY 
COMPANIES ADJACENT TO THE PROPOSED UTILITY CONSTRUCTION A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS 
AND A MAXIMUM OF 96 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION FOR SCHEDULING. THE 
CONTRACTOR SHALL SCHEDULE BI-WEEKLY CONSTRUCTION MEETINGS AT THE PROJECT SITE OR 
MORE FREQUENTLY AS DEEMED NECESSARY BY MSMD. 

14. PRELIMINARY ACCEPTANCE SHALL BE DEFINED AS THE POINT IN TIME THAT MSMD ACCEPTS 
THE FACILITY FOR USE AND ALL SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS AND RESTORATIONS ARE 
COMPLETED.  

15. FINAL ACCEPTANCE BY MSMD OF ANY UTILITY LINE OR SYSTEM SHALL NOT OCCUR UNTIL 
COMPLETION OF FINAL ASPHALT LAYERS AND/OR FINAL COMPLETION AND/OR RESTORATION OF 
ALL SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS.  THE WARRANTY PERIOD FOR ALL FACILITIES SHALL BE 12 
MONTHS COMMENCING WITH FINAL ACCEPTANCE. MSMD MAY REQUIRE RETESTING OF THE 
UTILITY SYSTEM PRIOR TO FINAL ACCEPTANCE. 

16. INSPECTION FEES: CALL MSMD FOR FEE SCHEDULE OR VIEW AT 
WWW.MERIDIANRANCHMETRO.ORG. 

17. ALL COMMERCIAL/BUSINESS DEVELOPMENTS SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM EIGHT INCH DIAMETER 
WATER MAIN LOOPED THROUGH THE PROPOSED PROPERTY WITH GATE VALVES LOCATED 
WHERE THE MAIN ENTERS AND EXITS THE PROPERTY AND A MINIMUM EIGHT INCH SANITARY 
SEWER MAIN WITH A MANHOLE IN THE STREET WHERE THE MAIN ENTERS THE PROPERTY.  THE 
EXTENT OF THE MAINS SHALL BE MARKED WITH THE APPROPRIATELY COLORED CARSONITE 
MARKERS AND TRACER WIRE. 

18. AFTER REVIEW AND APPROVAL OF PLANS FOR THE EXTENSION OF LINES, FACILITIES, AND/OR 
SERVICES, CONSTRUCTION MUST BE COMPLETED WITHIN 18 MONTHS FOR RESIDENTIAL 

42 of 106



Page 3 of 6 
 

SUBDIVISIONS AND 12 MONTHS FOR ANY COMMERCIAL INSTALLATIONS. IF WORK IS NOT 
COMPLETED WITHIN THIS TIME FRAME AND NO EXTENSION HAS BEEN GIVEN, THEN ALL PLANS 
MUST BE RE-SUBMITTED TO MSMD FOR REVIEW (WITH NEW FEES PAID) AND APPROVAL. 

19. PUMPING OR BYPASS OPERATIONS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY MSMD AND THE 
ENGINEER OF RECORD PRIOR TO EXECUTION. 

20. ANY FACILITIES OUTSIDE OF PAVED ROADS MUST BE MARKED APPROPRIATELY WITH CARSONITE 
MARKERS AT EACH VALVE, MANHOLE, TEST STATION, AND ANY OTHER FACILITIES MSMD DEEMS 
NECESSARY. 

SANITARY SEWER NOTES 

21. SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES WITH ONE ENTRANCE PIPE SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF FOUR (4) 
FOOT IN DIAMETER, ALL OTHERS SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF FIVE (5) FOOT IN DIAMETER. ALL 
MANHOLE JOINT EXTERIORS SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH MINIMUM 12” WIDE CON-SEAL CS-212 
APPLIED OVER APPROPRIATE MSMD APPROVED JOINT PRIMER. THE WHOLE EXTERIOR OF THE 
MANHOLES SHALL BE COATED WITH CONCRETE WATER PROOFING TAR APPLIED PER CSUS.  

22. ALL SANITARY SEWER MAINS, SANITARY SEWER LATERALS, AND WATER MAIN LINES (PVC & 
DUCTILE IRON) SHALL BE INSTALLED WITH COATED 12 GAUGE U.F. TRACER WIRE PER MSMD 
SPECIFICATIONS. SANITARY SEWER TRACER WIRE SHALL BE EXTENDED INTO THE MANHOLES 
AND WRAPPED AROUND THE TOP STEP OF THE MANHOLE AND EXTENDED TO EACH SANITARY 
SEWER LATERAL 2” X 4” MARKER AS NOTED BELOW (NOTE 26 AND 28). EXTEND TRACER WIRE TO 
THE TOP OF WATER VALVE BOXES A MINIMUM OF EVERY 500 FEET.  

23. TESTING OF FACILITIES: 
a. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY MSMD A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS AND A MAXIMUM 

OF 96 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY TESTING TO ALLOW MSMD STAFF TO BE 
PRESENT AT ALL TIMES DURING TESTING. ALL TESTING SHALL BE PER MSMD 
SPECIFICATIONS OR CSUS, WHICHEVER IS GREATER.  

b. ALL SANITARY SEWER FACILITIES SHALL MEET THE FOLLOWING TESTING 
REQUIREMENTS: 

• ALL SANITARY SEWER MAIN SHALL BE PRESSURE TESTED PER CSUS. 

• ALL SEWER MAIN SHALL BE PROPERLY BALLED/MANDRILL.  

• ALL SANITARY SEWER MANHOLES SHALL BE VACUUM TESTED PER CSUS.  

• ALL SANITARY SEWER MAINS SHALL BE CCTV INSPECTED WITH TWO VIDEOS ON 
DVDS SUBMITTED TO MSMD FOR REVIEW AND APPROVAL. ALL SANITARY 
SEWER MAINS SHALL BE JET CLEANED AND FLUSHED DIRECTLY PRIOR TO CCTV 
INSPECTION WITH RUNNING WATER IN THE SANITARY SEWER MAIN DURING 
THE CCTV INSPECTION. SANITARY SEWER MAINS THAT DO NOT MEET MSMD 
STANDARDS SHALL BE REPLACED AND OR REPAIRED AS NECESSARY AND RE-
TESTED. 

24. COMMENCEMENT OF USE OF ANY SANITARY SEWER LINES AND/OR SYSTEMS. NO SANITARY 
SEWER FACILITY SHALL BE PLACED IN SERVICE UNTIL: 

a. MSMD HAS APPROVED ALL TESTS AND COMPACTION TESTING REPORTS, AS-BUILT 
DRAWINGS AND REVIEWS ARE SUBMITTED TO AND APPROVED BY MSMD. 

b. ALL SANITARY SEWER LINES ARE COMPLETED AND THE FIRST LIFT OF ASPHALT IS 
COMPLETED OVER THE LINE.  IN THE CASE WHERE NO ASPHALT IS TO BE PLACED OVER 
THE LINE, ANY REQUIRED SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO 
USE OF THE FACILITY. 

43 of 106



Page 4 of 6 
 

c. ALL NECESSARY EASEMENTS (PLATTED OR DEEDED) ARE DEDICATED, EXECUTED TO 
MSMD, AND RECORDED.  

d. DOWNSTREAM PLUG CAN BE REMOVED ONCE FIRST LIFT OF ASPHALT IS DOWN AND 
THE ABOVE REQUIREMENTS ARE MET. 

25. WHEN A RESIDENTIAL SEWER SERVICE IS INSTALLED ON AN EXISTING SEWER MAIN A DOUBLE 
STRAP STAINLESS STEEL SADDLE TEE SHALL BE USED. THE SADDLE TEE, GASKET HUB & GASKET 
SKIRT MUST BE A STRAIGHT STYLE CONNECTION; NO “Y” STYLE WILL BE ALLOWED. ALL SEWER 
SERVICE CORE CUTOUTS MUST BE RECOVERED AND RETURNED TO THE DISTRICT FOR 
INSPECTION. IF ALL SEWER SERVICE CORE CUTOUTS ARE RECOVERED AND COMPLETE, THEN NO 
VIDEO INSPECTION OF THAT PORTION OF THE SEWER MAIN IS REQUIRED. IF ANY SEWER SERVICE 
CORE CUTOUT OR PORTION THERE FROM IS NOT RECOVERED, THAT SECTION OF SEWER MAIN 
SHALL BE CLEANED AND VIDEO INSPECTED TO ENSURE THAT THE SEWER SERVICE CORES OR 
PORTION THERE FROM IS RECOVERED.  

26. SANITARY SEWER MAIN LENGTHS ARE MH CENTER TO MH CENTER. ALL SANITARY SEWER PIPES 
SHALL BE SDR 35 PVC OR EQUAL AND HAVE A MINIMUM COVER DEPTH OF 5’-6” INSTALLED 
WITH A COATED 12 GAUGE U.F. TRACER WIRE. USE PRE-MANUFACTURED IN-LINE PVC PUSH-ON 
WYES FOR SANITARY SEWER LATERAL CONNECTIONS TO THE SANITARY SEWER MAIN. TAPPING 
SADDLES MAY ONLY BE USED FOR TAPPING PRE-EXISTING SANITARY SEWER MAINS. ALL LOTS 
SHALL RECEIVE A 4” SCHEDULE 40 SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LATERAL. THE END OF EACH 
SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LATERAL SHALL BE “LOCATED” WITH A WOOD 2” X 4” EXTENDED 4’ 
ABOVE FINISH GRADE FROM THE END OF THE SERVICE LOCATION AND PAINTED GREEN ABOVE 
FINISH GRADE.  EXTEND THE COATED 12 GAUGE U.F. TRACER WIRE TO END OF EACH SANITARY 
SEWER LATERAL UP TO THE SURFACE COILED AROUND THE 2” X 4” MARKER. ALL TRACER WIRE 
CONNECTIONS SHALL BE WATER TIGHT STYLE OF APPROVED ELECTRICAL CONNECTORS SUCH AS 
A DBY (DIRECT BURY YELLOW) OR EQUAL. 

WATER NOTES 

27. ALL WATER MAIN PIPES SHALL BE AWWA C900 PVC, PRESSURE CLASS 200 OR MSMD APPROVED 
EQUAL, INSTALLED PER MANUFACTURERS’ SPECIFICATIONS.  ALL WATER MAIN FITTINGS SHALL 
HAVE MECHANICAL RESTRAINTS AND THRUST BLOCKS. ALL WATER MAIN PIPES SHALL HAVE A 
MINIMUM COVER DEPTH OF 5'-6" INSTALLED WITH A COATED 12 GAUGE U.F. TRACER WIRE.  

28. ALL LOTS SHALL RECEIVE A MINIMUM 3/4 ” DIAMETER HDPE WATER SERVICE INSTALLED PER 
APPROVED PLANS, CSU, AND MSMD SPECIFICATIONS. HDPE WATER SERVICE SHALL BE HDPE 
SIDR-7 PE4710 RATED FOR 200 PSI WITH THE MARKING SIDR-7, AWWA C901, NSF61 PE4710. THE 
CURB STOP VALVE AND BOX AT THE END OF EACH WATER SERVICE SHALL BE “LOCATED” WITH A 
2” X 4” PIECE OF WOOD EXTENDED 4’ ABOVE FINISH GRADE, PAINTED BLUE, DIRECTLY BEHIND  
THE CURB STOP VALVE AND BOX. ALL TRACER WIRE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE MADE WITH DBY 
(DIRECT BURY YELLOW) WATER TIGHT STYLE ELECTRICAL CONNECTORS OR EQUAL. 

29. HDPE WATER SERVICES SHALL INCLUDE A ROMAC 202 NS OR EQUAL TAPPING SADDLE AND A 
CURB STOP VALVE INSIDE A CURB STOP BOX AT THE END OF THE WATER SERVICE. ALL 
CORPORATION STOPS SHALL BE AY MCDONALD MODEL NUMBER 74701B-33 FOR SIDR HDPE 
SAME SIZE AS THE WATER SERVICE. ALL CURB STOP VALVES SHALL BE ¾” AY MCDONALD MODEL 
NUMBER 76100 (FLARE X FLARE) OR EQUIVALENT WITH A MAIN SIDE ONE PACK JOINT (PEP) 
ADAPTOR AY MCDONALD MODEL NUMBER 74755-33 UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED ON THE 
PLANS. ALL 1” DIAMETER WATER SERVICES SHALL RECEIVE A 1” INLET BY ¾” OUTLET CURB STOP 
VALVE. 

44 of 106



Page 5 of 6 
 

30. ALL POTABLE WATER VALVES SHALL OPEN CLOCKWISE WITH THE VALVE OPERATING NUT 
INSTALLED LOW NEAR THE MAIN LINE AND PAINTED RED.  ALL POTABLE AND RAW WATER 
VALVES NOT WITHIN PAVED STREETS SHALL BE MARKED WITH CARSONITE MARKERS. ALL RAW 
WATER VALVES SHALL OPEN COUNTERCLOCKWISE WITH THE VALVE OPERATING NUT INSTALLED 
HIGH WITHIN 1’ FROM THE SURFACE AND PAINTED BLACK.  

31. ALL POTABLE WATER, RAW WATER AND NON-POTABLE WATER VALVES 14” OR GREATER SHALL 
BE BUTTERFLY VALVES WITH A SIDE OPERATING NUT. THE OPERATIONAL DEPTH OF THE 
POTABLE WATER VALVES SHALL NOT EXCEED 6’ IN OVERALL DEPTH NOR SHALL IT BE CLOSER TO 
THE SURFACE THEN 4’ 

32. FIRE HYDRANT LOCATIONS SHALL BE REVIEWED AND APPROVED BY THE APPLICABLE FIRE 
DEPARTMENT AUTHORITY. 

33. FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL BE AVK MODEL 2780 NOSTALGIC (PART # 27ND-O23XX-0010B-AN) OPEN 
RIGHT WITH A 1 ½” PENTAGON OPERATING NUT AND SERVICE CAPS, STANDARD 4 1/2” PUMPER 
NOZZLE WITH A THREAD PATTERN OF 5 – 3/8” – 6 TPI (THREADS PER INCH) ALONG WITH TWO 
STANDARD 2 ½” NST (NATIONAL STANDARD THREAD) SIDE NOZZLES.    HYDRANT SHALL BE 
PAINTED WITH RUSTOLEUM SAFETY YELLOW. 

34. ALL DUCTILE IRON PIPES, FITTINGS, VALVES AND FIRE HYDRANTS SHALL BE WRAPPED WITH 
POLYETHYLENE TUBING, DOUBLE BONDED AT EACH JOINT AND ELECTRICALLY ISOLATED.  
BONDING AND ANODE CONNECTIONS SHALL BE THOROUGHLY COATED WITH BITUMINOUS 
COATINGS. 

35. ALL DUCTILE IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS LESS THAN 12 INCHES IN DIAMETER SHALL HAVE 
CATHODIC PROTECTION USING TWO NO. 6 WIRES WITH 17 LB. MAGNESIUM ANODES EVERY 400 
FEET AND 9 LB. MAGNESIUM ANODES AT EACH FITTING.  ALL DUCTILE IRON PIPE AND FITTINGS 
12 INCHES AND GREATER SHALL HAVE CATHODIC PROTECTION USING TWO NO. 6 WIRES WITH 
17 LB. MAGNESIUM ANODES EVERY 300 FEET AND 9 LB. MAGNESIUM ANODES AT EACH FITTING. 
CATHODIC PROTECTION AND ANODES SHALL BE INSTALLED PER MSMD SPECIFICATIONS. 

36. ALL EXISTING WATER UTILITY MATERIAL REMOVED AS PART OF THE WORK ON THESE DRAWINGS 
SHALL BE RETURNED TO MSMD AS REQUESTED. 

37. TESTING OF FACILITIES: 
a. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTIFY MSMD A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS AND A MAXIMUM 

OF 96 HOURS PRIOR TO THE START OF ANY TESTING TO ALLOW MSMD STAFF TO BE 
PRESENT AT ALL TIMES DURING TESTING. ALL TESTING SHALL BE PER MSMD 
SPECIFICATIONS OR CSUS, WHICHEVER IS GREATER.  

b. ALL SECTIONS OF WATER LINES MUST FIRST PASS A CHLORINE TEST WITH A MINIMUM 
OF 50 PARTS PER MILLION OF RESIDUAL AFTER 24 HOURS. THE WHOLE SECTION OF LINE 
BEING TESTED MUST BE RE-CHLORINATED AND RE-TESTED IF IT DOES NOT PASS. ONCE 
THE SECTION OF LINE BEING TESTED PASSES THE CHLORINE TEST THE LINE MUST BE 
FLUSHED AND BAC-T TESTED PER CSUS. ONCE THE BAC-T TEST PASSES, THE SECTION OF 
LINE MAY BE PRESSURE TESTED. WATER FLUSHED FROM THE WATER SYSTEM MUST BE 
PROPERLY DE-CHLORINATED DURING THE FLUSHING PROCESS  

c. ALL SECTIONS OF WATER LINES MUST PASS A TWO HOUR 200 PSI HYDROSTATIC 
PRESSURE TEST. THE PRESSURE SHALL NOT DECREASE BY MORE THAN 5 PSI DURING 
THE DURATION OF THE TEST. NO WATER SHALL BE ADDED DURING THE PRESSURE TEST. 
IF THE PRESSURE TEST FAILS, THE SECTIONS OF LINE THAT FAILED MUST AGAIN PASS 
THE CHLORINE TEST, BE FLUSHED, AND PASS THE BAC-T TEST PRIOR TO CONDUCTING A 
NEW PRESSURE TEST. 

45 of 106



Page 6 of 6 
 

d. ONCE WATER SERVICES ARE INSTALLED A SECOND WATER PRESSURE TEST MUST BE 
DONE TO A WORKING PSI OF 150 PSI FOLLOWING THE ABOVE TESTING STANDARDS.  

e.  SECTIONS OF WATER LINES SHALL BE LEFT PRESSURIZED ONCE THE WATER LINES HAVE 
PASSED ALL TESTING DURING THE REMAINING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.  

38. COMMENCEMENT OF USE OF WATER LINES AND/OR SYSTEMS. NO WATER FACILITY SHALL BE 
PLACED IN SERVICE UNTIL: 

a. MSMD HAS APPROVED ALL TESTS AND COMPACTION TESTING REPORTS, AND AS-BUILT 
DRAWINGS ARE SUBMITTED TO AND APPROVED BY MSMD. 

b. ALL WATER LINES ARE COMPLETED AND THE FIRST LIFT OF ASPHALT IS COMPLETED 
OVER THE LINE.  IN THE CASE WHERE NO ASPHALT IS TO BE PLACED OVER THE LINE, 
SURFACE IMPROVEMENTS SHALL BE COMPLETED PRIOR TO USE OF THE FACILITY. 

c. ALL EASEMENTS (PLATTED OR DEEDED) ARE DEDICATED, EXECUTED TO MSMD, AND 
RECORDED.  

39. ANY WATER SHUT DOWNS THAT NEED TO OCCUR ON THE CRITICAL LINES AS DEFINED BY THE 
MSMD SOP (STANDARD OPERATION PROCEDURE) MANUAL SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH 
MSMD STAFF FOR NIGHT TIME SHUT DOWNS. 

40. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE ALL NECESSARY CONNECTIONS TO EXISTING WATER MAINS 
WITHOUT A SHUTDOWN OF THE WATER SYSTEM. IN THE EVENT THAT A SHUTDOWN OF A 
WATER SYSTEM IS NECESSARY, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL ACQUIRE A PERMIT FROM MSMD.  

41. ALL NON-POTABLE WATER MAINS SHALL BE AWWA NON-POTABLE STANDARD (PURPLE PIPE) 
C900 PVC, PRESSURE CLASS 200 OR MSMD APPROVED EQUAL, INSTALLED PER 
MANUFACTURERS’ SPECIFICATIONS.  ALL WATER MAIN FITTINGS SHALL HAVE MECHANICAL 
RESTRAINTS AND THRUST BLOCKS. ALL WATER MAIN PIPES SHALL HAVE A MINIMUM COVER 
DEPTH OF 5'-6" INSTALLED WITH A COATED 12 GAUGE U.F. TRACER WIRE.  

42. ALL NON- POTABLE WATER VALVES SHALL OPEN COUNTER CLOCKWISE WITH A VALVE 
EXTENSION, EXTENDING TO WITHIN 1’ OF THE SURFACE AND PAINTED PURPLE WITH AN OPEN 
DIRECTION ARROW.  

43. IRRIGATION SERVICES SHALL HAVE A STOP AND WASTE CURB STOP VALVE INSTALLED ALONG 
WITH A TRACER WIRE EXTENDING BACK TO THE MAIN LINE. 

THE ABOVE GUIDELINES ARE SUBJECT TO CHANGE AT ANY TIME. 
 

46 of 106



47 of 106



48 of 106



49 of 106



50 of 106



51 of 106



52 of 106



53 of 106



54 of 106



55 of 106



56 of 106



57 of 106



58 of 106



59 of 106



60 of 106



61 of 106



62 of 106



63 of 106



64 of 106



65 of 106



66 of 106



67 of 106



68 of 106



69 of 106



70 of 106



71 of 106



72 of 106



73 of 106



74 of 106



75 of 106



76 of 106



77 of 106



78 of 106



79 of 106



80 of 106



81 of 106



82 of 106



83 of 106



84 of 106



85 of 106



86 of 106



87 of 106



88 of 106



89 of 106



90 of 106



91 of 106



92 of 106



93 of 106



94 of 106



95 of 106



96 of 106



97 of 106



98 of 106



99 of 106



100 of 106



101 of 106



102 of 106



103 of 106



104 of 106



105 of 106



106 of 106


